
Housing and Community Engagement 
Scrutiny Commission

Wednesday 14 October 2020
6.00 pm

Online/Virtual. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. 
Please contact FitzroyAntonio.williams@southwark.gov.uk for a link to the 
meeting.

Membership Reserves

Councillor Gavin Edwards (Chair)
Councillor Hamish McCallum (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Radha Burgess
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle MBE
Councillor Paul Fleming
Councillor Jon Hartley
Councillor Nick Johnson
Tenants Forum representative (tbc)
Homeowners Forum representative (tbc)
Tenant Management Organisations 
Committee representative (tbc)

Councillor Anood Al-Samerai
Councillor Sarah King
Councillor Sunny Lambe
Councillor Victoria Olisa
Councillor Andy Simmons
Councillor Bill Williams

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information
You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as well as 
the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.

Access
The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on translation, 
provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: www.southwark.gov.uk or 
please contact the person below.

Contact
Everton Roberts on 020 7525 7221 or email:  everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk  

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting
Eleanor Kelly
Chief Executive
Date: 6 October 2020

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk


Housing and Community Engagement Scrutiny 
Commission

Wednesday 14 October 2020
6.00 pm

Online/Virtual. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. Please 
contact FitzroyAntonio.williams@southwark.gov.uk for a link to the meeting.

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.

PART A - OPEN BUSINESS

1. APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
DEEMS URGENT

In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an agenda 
within five clear working days of the meeting.

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

Members to declare any interests and dispensations in respect of any item 
of business to be considered at this meeting.

4. MINUTES

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 2 
September 2020.

To follow

5. ESTATE CLEANING

To receive a brief report on Estate Cleaning. To follow

6. WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21 1 - 7

To consider the work programme for 2020/21.



Item No. Title Page No.

7. DISTRICT HEATING AND HEAT NETWORKS FINAL REPORT 8 - 29

To note the final report on district heating and heat networks scheduled for 
consideration by cabinet on 20 October 2020.

8. COMMUNITY HUBS

To receive the report in connection with community hubs from the Cabinet 
Member for Social Support and Homelessness due to be considered by 
cabinet on 20 October 2020.  

This report will become available following the cabinet agenda despatch 
on 12 October 2020.

DISCUSSION OF ANY OTHER OPEN  ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE 
START OF THE MEETING

PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS

DISCUSSION OF ANY CLOSED ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START 
OF THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT

Date:  6 October 2020



1

Item No. 
6.

Classification:
Open

Date:
14 October 2020

Meeting Name:
Housing and Community 
Engagement Scrutiny 
Commission

Report title: Work Programme 2020-21

Ward(s) or groups affected: N/a

From: Head of Overview and Scrutiny (Acting)

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. That the housing and community engagement scrutiny commission note the work 
programme as at 14 October 2020 attached as Appendix 1.

2. That the housing and community engagement scrutiny commission consider the 
addition of new items or allocation of previously identified items to specific meeting 
dates of the commission.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

3. The general terms of reference of the scrutiny commissions are set out in the 
council’s constitution (overview and scrutiny procedure rules - paragraph 5).  The 
constitution states that:

Within their terms of reference, all scrutiny committees/commissions will:

a) review and scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in connection with the 
discharge of any of the council’s functions

b) review and scrutinise the decisions made by and performance of the cabinet 
and council officers both in relation to individual decisions and over time in 
areas covered by its terms of reference

c) review and scrutinise the performance of the council in relation to its policy 
objectives, performance targets and/or particular service areas

d) question members of the cabinet and officers about their decisions and 
performance, whether generally in comparison with service plans and targets 
over a period of time, or in relation to particular decisions, initiatives or 
projects and about their views on issues and proposals affecting the area

e) assist council assembly and the cabinet in the development of its budget and 
policy framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues

f) make reports and recommendations to the cabinet and or council assembly 
arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process

g) consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants

1
Agenda Item 6



2

h) liaise with other external organisations operating in the area, whether 
national, regional or local, to ensure that the interests of local people are 
enhanced by collaborative working

i) review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the area and 
invite reports from them by requesting them to address the scrutiny 
committee and local people about their activities and performance

j) conduct research and consultation on the analysis of policy issues and 
possible options

k) question and gather evidence from any other person (with their consent)

l) consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance community 
participation in the scrutiny process and in the development of policy options

m) conclude inquiries promptly and normally within six months

4. The work programme document lists those items which have been or are to be 
considered in line with the committee’s terms of reference.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

5. The Housing service areas that fall within the scope of the Housing and 
Community Engagement Scrutiny Commission are:

 Resident Services (which includes area management, strategy and business 
support, strategic business and support housing services).

 Customer Experience Division (which includes the Contact Centre; Customer 
Resolution and Specialist Services, My Southwark Home Owners and the 
Housing Solutions Services).

 Asset Management Division (which includes New Homes; Investment, 
Repairs & Maintenance and Engineering).

6. As of 16 September the commission also now has within in its remit the area of 
community engagement.

7. The cabinet portfolio elements relating to this commission are listed below:

Housing (Councillor Leo Pollok)

 Housing Strategy
 New council homes
 Housing allocations and lettings
 Council housing asset management strategy and investment programmes
 Housing repairs and major works
 Homeowners services
 Private rented housing
 Empty homes and under occupation
 Short term-lets
 Relationship with housing associations

2



3

Leisure, Environment and Roads - Councillor Catherine Rose (Housing related 
portfolio areas)

 Estate cleaning

Communities and Equalities – Councillor Alice Macdonald (Community related 
portfolio areas)

 Community engagement, participation and development
 Community and tenants and residents halls and centres
 Faith communities

Social Support and Homelessness – Councillor Helen Dennis

 Establishing a Southwark Community Support Alliance (building on the 
success of the community hub)

 Homelessness services

8. Set out in Appendix 1 (Work Programme) are the issues the housing scrutiny 
commission is due to consider in the 2020-21 municipal year.  

9. The work programme is a standing item on the housing scrutiny commission 
agenda and enables the commission to consider, monitor and plan issues for 
consideration at each meeting.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
Housing Scrutiny Commission 
agenda and minutes 

Southwark Council 
Website 

Everton Roberts
020 7525 7221

Link: http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=520 

APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix 1 Work Programme 2020-21

3

http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=520


4

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Everton Roberts, Head of Overview and Scrutiny (Acting)
Report Author Everton Roberts, Head of Overview and Scrutiny (Acting)

Version Final
Dated 6 October  2020

Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / 

CABINET MEMBER
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments Included

Director of Law and Democracy No No
Strategic Director of Finance 
and Governance

No No

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Scrutiny Team 6 October 2020

4



APPENDIX 1

Work Programme 2020-21

Item Meeting date Commentary

24 Jun 
2020

21 July 
2020

2 Sept 
2020

14 Oct 
2020

19 Jan 
2021

29 
Mar 
2021

Items for future consideration – either allocated ()  or to be allocated.

Estate Cleaning - - -  - - - On agenda

Community Hubs - - -  - - - On agenda

District Heating – Report of the 
Housing Scrutiny Commission 
(Final Report)

-    - - - On agenda

Homelessness in Southwark 
during and Post Covid-19 
Lockdown

 - - - - - -

The Council’s Relationship with 
Housing Associations in the 
Borough

- -  -  Update from Wandle on Clarson House.

Cabinet response to scrutiny commission 
recommendations due to be considered at 
October Cabinet.  Response to be included 

5



Item Meeting date Commentary

24 Jun 
2020

21 July 
2020

2 Sept 
2020

14 Oct 
2020

19 Jan 
2021

29 
Mar 
2021

on next meeting agenda for noting.

The Housing Repairs Service – 
Report from Housing Scrutiny 
Commission – Response of 
Cabinet

- - - -  - - Scrutiny review report noted by cabinet on 7 
April 2020.  Response to scrutiny review 
anticipated to be considered at December 
Cabinet.  Cabinet response to be submitted 
to next available scrutiny commission 
meeting for noting.

Temporary Accommodation and 
New Housing Allocations Scheme 

- - - - - - - Meeting date to be identified

Identified at October 2019 meeting as a topic 
for further discussion.

Voids / Empty Homes - - - - - Meeting date to be identified

Agreed at October meeting that issue should 
come back for discussion.

Council Home Building Programme - - - - - - - Meeting date to be identified

Identified as a potential scrutiny item in July 
2019.  Agreed at the time that the 
commission should check in on the delivery 
of new homes with a session in November 
2019 and then decide on additional Scrutiny 
activity required at that point.

6



Item Meeting date Commentary

24 Jun 
2020

21 July 
2020

2 Sept 
2020

14 Oct 
2020

19 Jan 
2021

29 
Mar 
2021

Cabinet member interview – 
Cabinet Member for Housing

- - - - - - - Meeting date to be identified

Cabinet member interview -
Cabinet member for Communities 
and Equalities

- - - - Meeting date to be identified

7



District Heating and Heat Networks

Report from 
Southwark Housing Scrutiny Commission 

September 2020

8
Agenda Item 7



Members of the Housing Scrutiny Commission

Commission Member Role

Councillor Gavin Edwards Chair

Councillor Hamish McCallum Vice-Chair

Councillor Jack Buck Committee Member

Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle MBE Committee Member

Councillor Jon Hartley Committee Member

Councillor Nick Johnson Committee Member

Councillor Bill Williams Committee Member

Cris Claridge Co-Optee

Ina Negoita Co-Optee

Introduction

Southwark Housing Scrutiny Commission (HSC) decided to investigate the council’s 
approach to district heating systems for three primary reasons:

1. Because the council is already engaged in  wide-ranging projects to upgrade existing 
systems and to expand district heating in the borough

2. Because the number and regularity of outages of existing district heating systems 
causes significant inconvenience and discomfort to residents, and so it is important 
to analyse how the council responds to these situations.

3. Southwark’s will need to respond to changes in government regulations regarding 
individual metering and the regulation of heat networks.

Everyone agrees that district heating systems are very important to Southwark residents 
and to the council’s longer-term strategy for investing in council housing. Southwark is a
major heat network operator. We have 120 heating systems serving some 17,000 residents 
with heat, including nearly 3,000 served by heat from the waste incinerator at SELCHP.  As 
the evidence presented in this report confirms, improving reliability remains an issue which 
needs to be urgently resolved.

So, there is a strong connection between point 1 and point 2 set out above.  The 
unreliability of some existing heat networks is a direct consequence of aging infrastructure 
and a lack of strategic investment over many years. But changing this is a long-term project.  
In the meantime, we also need to ensure that the council can respond to outages in a way 
which gives maximum support to residents and ensures they are kept up to date.  

9



This report is broadly structured to address these three separate but connected issues. We 
are seeking to address recommendations which help to guide the long-term investment 
programme and shape how the council supports residents experiencing outages. 

This report will avoid simply repeating the copious amounts of information publicly available 
on Southwark’s plans in regard to district heating. It is focussed on the additional evidence 
we have gathered as a commission. 

For context, the following links may be useful in providing context for what follows. 

Heat Networks Cabinet Paper, July 2019 

Summary of ESCO Structures

Roadmap for developing heat networks strategy, July 2019

The Housing Scrutiny Commission carried out the following actions to gather evidence:

1. Formal Interview with Cabinet Member
2. A formal Interview with officers leading on response to district heating failures
3. Two formal Interviews with officers leading on strategic investment and extension of 

SELCHP and wider heat network (July 2019 and October 2020)
4. Informal discussions with officers. 
5. Case studies on the Aylesbury and Brandon Estates
6. Notes from Tenant engagement meetings (Carried out by officers, but shared with 

the commission)
7. Formal evidence submitted by Southwark Group of Tenants Organisations (October 

2019)
8. “Keeping the pressure on” a further dossier from Southwark Group of Tenants 

Organisations updating their evidence following the Covid-19 lockdown (July 2020)

The evidence gathered is presented below followed by recommendations of the committee. 

Formal Interview with Cabinet Member 

On 8th July 2019, the Housing Scrutiny Commission formally interviewed Kieron Williams, 
the Cabinet Member for Housing Management and modernisation. Below are the key 
extracts from the interview. 

On the longevity of district heating systems, the council’s historic approach and why 
change is needed: “. . . most of our systems, it's fair to say were original systems installed 
when blocks were built. And, and what's happened over time is we've had a process of 
maintaining them with responsive repairs when they've gone wrong and increasingly, 
they're coming to the end of their lives. So we've got a lot of the big major systems that are 
getting to the end of their life cycles and beyond their life cycles actually.   Some of them 
were put in to last for 20 years and are now 30 odd years old and we've them kept going 
until now. And why has that been the case? Well, we've never had enough money to do all 
the repairs that want to do and we've made priorities and that has worked up to now. But 
the truth is it is stopping working now and what we've seen at the moment is that the 

10

http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s83816/2019_07_03_Heat_Networks_Update_Paper_v11.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s83817/APPENDIX%201%20-%20Summary%20of%20ESCO%20structures.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s83818/APPENDIX%202%20-%20Roadmap%20to%20Heat%20Networks%20Strategy.pdf


availability rate of heating and hot water systems is now at 97%. Sounds good. But that 
means that three in every hundred days people not getting their heating or hot water.”

On carbon reduction: “. . . almost all of our district heating systems at the moment are gas 
powered with the exception of SELCHP and clearly we are committed to end carbon 
emissions we need to move away from those gas powered heating systems.  So this cabinet 
paper also talks about some proposals to put in some heat pump renewable systems and 
look at the extension of SELCHP to cover more estates. And then the strategy work really is 
answering the question of where do we go beyond that, in terms of having sustainable heat 
sources beyond and into the future. 

On heat market regulation: “. . . potentially a whole different level of regime coming down 
the line.  So at the moment, if you provide electricity, you're regulated. If you provide heat 
you're not.  It looks quite likely that the level of regulation will come in around heat 
provision that is equivalent to around electricity so the cabinet paper sets out all the things 
that we will have to understand as a council to do this.”

On the council response to outages: “. . . when we do have outages and we have had 
significant episodes, we have made sure that we stepped in, and particularly for those 
people who are vulnerable providing  electric heaters provide people compensation for the 
electricity that they're using, instead of using the district heating they're  provided at the 
moment, but what we really want people to have is reliable heating systems that are on all 
the time or almost all the time, and up to modern standards.”

On fuel poverty and individual metering: (In answer to a question from Cllr Bill Williams) 
“This is one of the challenges we face at the moment, the regulation that's come in suggests 
that all everyone should be individually metred but it hasn't been implemented yet. So 
there's regulation on the books that says everyone should have individual metering, but it 
hasn't been enforced yet. And if that was coming in place in the future, and there are lots of 
reasons why that would be sensible . . . We have to come up with a policy that balances 
those.  But we will have to have a policy and in the end, my view is we probably will have to 
move to some kind of individual metering as it's likely to be the way the regulatory context 
works.”  

On the capacity of SELCHP to deliver on council plans (In answer to a question from Cllr 
Nick Johnson) “SELCHP has a huge amount of capacity to put on thousands of more homes.  
That's definitely, definitely the case. And the question is how much more capacity - a lot 
more and potentially with some more works done at SELCHP. . . And so then, importantly, 
the next bit about this is that works are interrelated to each other. So there's a big cost of 
extending the network in any direction. But if that cost is shared across a large number of 
homes, it comes down to a much smaller cost per home. A very affordable and reasonable 
way to provide heat. But it means you can't just do one small estate here and  connect it to 
SELCHP and one small estate there, the viability all has to be stacked up on the basis of 
saying there are enough, there's a swathe of the borough here that we can confidently 
connect. And that will work. And the two broad branches I mentioned in the papers are 
either and or moving towards Peckham and moving down towards Canada Water and 
around. 

11



On private sector investment and involvement in delivering our heating strategy: “Tenants 
and residents in our homes will always hold the council to account for the heating they're 
receiving. And so, you know, that's our responsibility and we need to keep it. My personal 
preferred option would be able to find the investment to keep it all in house and develop 
our expertise and capacity to be the first choice of heat provider for the borough, whether 
that's our own stock, or other people's stock and whether that's commercial buildings as 
well. So the more we can explore those things, the better. That said, you know, there is a 
world of organisations with much more history of investing in these systems globally or in 
Europe than we have so we do have to think about what those providers may or may not 
bring and so the options for getting the district heating systems to where we need them to 
be .

On linking new private housing developments to heat networks: (In answer to a question 
from Cllr Hamish McCallum): “So the London plan and the Southwark plan are obviously 
used for large developments, if they can viably connect to an existing network, it should as 
their  first option, and so that, for example, in Canada Water  that's the discussion we're 
having at the moment about whether it's fully viable for them to connect to SELCHP. And 
that should be the first option that they consider.”

[Councillor McCallum went on to ask about making linking to networks a condition of 
planning and including it in the Southwark Plan.  The cabinet member gave a commitment 
to look into this further] 

On outages on the big estates, both planned and unplanned: “The Wyndham, Comber and 
Brandon system, one of the reasons that has had so many outages is the design of it has not 
been like a modern system. So it's one system, if the boilers go down. Originally, it had a 
couple of boilers and one of them broke so there's only one running, so other things going 
on. But if there is a leak is probably a better way - a leak anywhere in the system that stops 
the whole system. And there's no way of just saying, well, let's just shut off this bit over 
here. . .  The good modern designed system has much more ability to deal with the fact that 
it's just this bit that's broken. You know, we know where the pipes are and they're more 
reliably built. Absolutely, if they're not maintained in 40 years time, we will be back in the 
same place. So having a proper maintenance regime really is important

On tenant and resident involvement (In answer to a question from Cllr Dora Dixon-File) “. . . 
we won't get any of this, right unless we're working with people living in these homes to 
make sure it's the right systems, in all aspects of that from the heat to the metering or 
whatever else it might be. . . obviously the proposal in here to set up a new borough wide 
group.  We are already setting up groups in particular estates where there are works going 
on, and resident project groups in those estates so they can shape those projects in detail. 
In the format that I think most people here will be familiar with for major works and new 
homes schemes. There are some very practical things that were not going right in the past. 
So for instance, when some of our really dedicated TRA chairs, would ring up and say, the 
system on my estate is down, the call centre would say, well, you're just one person ringing 

12



up. We should have got beyond that now in the call centre if you're a TRA rep and you're 
phoning up, they should just acknowledge, okay, you know, your estate is down.” 

A formal Interview with officers leading on response to district heating 
outages

Also providing evidence on the 8th July 2019 were the Head of Engineering, and the Director 
of Asset Management. The Housing Scrutiny Commission is very grateful for their 
contributions and insight. Below are the key quotes from their contributions:  

On the long-term reliability of district heating systems and the need for investment:
“So, analysing the data going back nearly 10 years We roughly provide between 96% and 
99% availability. That's not where we want to be. We want to give people 100% availability 
throughout the year. The engineering team works remarkably hard when there are 
unplanned outages to get them fixed as quickly as possible. But sometimes we can't fix 
them as quickly as we'd like and two recent illustrations of that, where we had some 
catastrophic boiler failures on the Wyndham Estate a few months ago, and a major leak in 
Thurlow Street that affected almost half of the Aylesbury Estate.  Those compounded the 
figures for last year if you like, so far for this year, we're at 99.3. But of course we still got 
the winter to come.  Talking about the paper, the investment need. We took a paper to 
cabinet in January 2017 that estimated the investment need in the district heating stock at 
around £350 million. That's not money that we've got to hand.   So we were tasked with 
going off and coming up with a strategy for investing in that stock and levering in the 
investment required into it. So we eventually got hold of a man who you really need to 
meet, Tom Vosper who's our strategic project manager, ideal for the piece of work in front 
of us, and the author of the report that you've got

On private sector involvement in ESCOs: “It shows you the different type of ESCOs that we 
will need to look at. They range from council owned if you like, through to private owned. 
So with the council owned there'd be quite a high investment needed. But similarly, I don't 
want to run away from the fact that if we went privately owned there'd be a level of 
investment needed, because a private investor would expect to make money, and it might 
be that you - these are all the things that Tom's got to look at. But these - they might want 
to change the rent structure so that they're actually paying for what they receive - residents. 
If you look at appendix one, there's a whole range of ESCOs and how they operate within 
that appendix.”

On individual metering and implementation of government policy: “So the regulations say 
that we should look at individual meters.  But the government department has yet to come 
up with the viability tool that says you've now got to put them into existing district heating 
systems or homes served by existing district systems, as you can imagine, some flats are so 
old there's really actually not a lot of space to put a meter. So we're waiting for that viability 
tool. Anything that we build now does have to have heat meters. Any material alterations to 
blocks that we might be refurbishing, there's a set of rules that says whether you need to 
put individual. And of course we meet those rules going forward.”

13



On a resident’s feedback group on District heating: “One of the recommendations is about 
setting up a residents' group. To look at two things exactly those is, what do we do during 
current outages? And how can we improve what we do? And how can we engage with 
residents in a strategy or strategies going forward?  So I think that's really important, we 
recognise the need, that the residents are at the end of this stuff. And we need to take them 
with us and work with us with them is what we need to do .  

On the reliability of SELCHP: “My experience with SELCHP so far is we get very little outage 
from SELCHP itself. Some of the outages that happened on the blocks or estates that were 
on it, were on the secondary pipework which might be ours. So that is a leak in our pipe 
work. And that takes out that estate or that block.  Very rarely, in fact, I don't think I 
remember any time when SELCHP itself has failed to provide the hot water or the heat

On compensation for residents arising from outages: “Well as the compensation policy, 
which is actually part of our complaints policy and compensation part is actually being 
reviewed at the moment. But I haven't got an end date for that yet. But it's always been the 
case, certainly, as long as I've been engineering that whilst, it doesn't sound very fair, during 
periods of outages of more than 24 hours, me and my team actually rebate the rent 
element of the heat, and hot water every quarter for every outage over 24 hours. So if it's 
three days, they'll get three days back.  But during exceptional outages, and we accepted 
that the outages on Wyndham, Brandon, Comber and what happened on the Aylesbury 
were exceptional, and we paid some compensation for that. And that's not unheard of - the 
amounts were unheard of, to be honest with you. Prior to that, they were they were smaller 
amounts. But that's not to say they haven't happened before.  We are reviewing our 
compensation policy to make sure right now that it's where it needs to be.

At the March 2020 Housing Scrutiny Commission meeting, officers provided the following 
table demonstrating how the engineering team is prioritising the district heating
major works programme, which addresses the known long term issues and the poorest 
performing systems.

14



Formal Interviews with officers leading on strategic investment and 
extension of SELCHP and wider heat network (July 2019 and June 2020)

On 28th October, the Strategic Project Manager, district heating attended the Commission 
meeting and gave a wide ranging talk on the development of heat networks in the borough.  

15



A link to the presentation the Strategic Project Manager gave is here: 
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s85378/Heat%20Networks%20Update.pdf 

The key points from the presentation and questions to the officer are:

The officer explained that the council’s primary objectives with the strategy were to 
improve the reliability of the system, ensure affordability and reduce carbon emissions. A 
general timeline for planned work is set out below.

Southwark hopes to access renewable heat incentive (RHI) grants to fund work on heat 
pump networks. The commission was told that the amount of carbon it takes to generate a 
unit of electricity has reduced significantly in the last ten years, but the gas carbon factor 
has stayed the same. The outcome is that electricity now uses much less carbon than gas. A 
heat pump takes heat from the local environment, and then uses electricity to concentrate 
it and make it useful.  Essentially, the process uses electricity to drive heat into places it can 
be used. The gap between heat pumps and gas is now large, in terms of carbon efficiency. 

To create a heat pump, we bore holes into an aquifer and take heat out.  At the time of this 
evidence session, this approach was being considered in estates/locations, but it was 
already recognised that it would probably only be feasible in three of them (See update 
session below).  It is expected that, over a twenty year period, a heat pump project should 
cover its own costs. The project would not completely replace the gas boilers.  The pumps 
would replace between ½ and ¾ of current demand. 

The officer then went on to explain our approach to expanding the South East London 
Combined Heat and Power (SELCHP), the waste incineration plant in South Bermondsey. It 
generates both heat and electricity. SELCHP has a carbon factor of 0.06, which is 3-4 times 
lower than gas and there is lots of capacity for extending SELCHP to other developments. 
Both extension projects (Canada Water and Peckham/Old Kent Road) are at feasibility stage. 

16

http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s85378/Heat%20Networks%20Update.pdf


The officer explained that the council has more control over the Peckham/Old Kent Road 
extension, but he believes both extensions are viable. 

Regarding the Renewable Heat Incentive (RHI) projects, the officer explained that a grant 
would pay for capital costs and installation.  So there would be no cost to leaseholders and 
no section 20 notices would be required. It would also help to keep charges down for 
tenants. 

Update session, 24th June 2020

On the 24th June 2020, the Housing Scrutiny Commission received an update on the 
investment programme for district heating from the Cabinet Member for Housing and the 
Strategic Project Manager for Heat Networks to ensure our considerations of these issues 
and recommendations were fully up to date. The updates received were as follows.  

The Commission heard that the Cabinet had approved and created a Heat Networks 
Governance Board. The group discusses a range of issues including priority estates and 
problems, resident communication, carbon saving projects and future investment.

Officers stated that the Heat Networks Resident’s Working Group has been established with 
resident representatives from across numerous estates and tenures. There are 15 people. 
on the group. This group has met three times between October 2019 and February 2020, 
providing feedback on the Council’s heating operations and future strategy. Key messages 
communicated by the group are the need to:

- Improve communications
- Increase digital integration
- Maintain affordability and consider investment impacts on leaseholders. 

The chair of the commission has asked to see the notes from these meetings and these are 
considered later in this report. 

Consultants Arup have (in June 2020) mostly completed the Heat Mapping and Master 
Planning work. An extension to the project was commissioned in which Arup’s hydrogeology 
team drew together additional data. 

There was also an update on the water source heat pump project. A feasibility study of eight 
sites had been carried in 2019 and pointed to a high technical and economic potential for 
five sites. A detailed feasibility study was commissioned and undertaken throughout the 
autumn 2019. This found three of the five sites to be both technically and economically 
feasible – these are Consort, Newington and Wyndham. Between the three estates the 
project is expected to save almost 4,000 tonnes of CO2 in the first year alone while also 
reducing local flue gas emissions. A detailed specification for the project has been written. 
Gateway 2 contract approval was received at the start of April 2020. The preferred 
contractor has not yet been appointed to begin work. Members of the commission were 
told further information on the contract award could not yet be given but would be 
available soon.

17



Regarding the SELCHP Heat Network extension, a feasibility study looking at the extension 
towards the Old Kent Road development area and Peckham was completed the end of 
2019. The primary conclusion of this work was that extending the SELCHP network offered 
the best value approach to reducing carbon for Old Kent Road developments as well as the 
council’s housing estates.  To deliver on this it was found that varying the existing contract 
with Veolia, rather than undertaking an open tender was the best approach. On 
questioning, officers explained a wider procurement process would not have been 
worthwhile because the market would not have been able to deliver further options. The 
Council has since worked with Veolia to develop a collaboration agreement to define the 
steps, roles and responsibilities of the two parties in extending the network.

The Commission also heard that, in January 2020 the Council was successful in having five 
sites join a consultancy investigation led and funded by Department of Business Energy and
Industrial Strategy to identify how different heat networks could have their performance 
levels improved. 

Southwark’s consultancy partner investigating the costs and benefits of various 
improvement measures that could be carried out at Brandon, Brimmington, Newington, 
North Peckham and Sylvan Grove estates. Investment grade proposals should be ready by 
the end of 2020.

The report provided to the Commission also stated “Of private investment into Council heat 
networks to investigate ways in which the private sector could potentially play a role in 
investing into the Council’s networks and providing operational and maintenance services 
over a long-term contract. This work is still in progress.”  

On this point, members of the commission did raise questions and concerns about the 
potential new maintenance contracts being put in place given the council’s negative 
experience of private sector repairs contracts in other areas.  Members also raised the point 
possibility of better integration of heating repairs with the council’s own repairs service 
which has now been brought fully in-house. 

Finally, there was also an update on the issue of government regulation, which the 
Commission had been forewarned about during the 2019 evidence sessions, and which was 
referenced in the July 2019 Cabinet paper.  The commission was told that the government 
had recently consulted on two major areas affecting the Council’s heat networks. Firstly, the 
proposed amendments to the Heat Networks (Metering and Billing)

Regulations 2014. The requirement to install heat meters in dwellings other than newly built 
properties has been on hold in recent years. According to the report provided stated:

“If this requirement returns in a significant way when the government’s response to the 
consultation is released and primary legislation comes forward it could have far reaching 
implications on the Council’s operations. The installation of dwelling heat meters and 
controls can be expensive, disruptive and change the way residents pay for heat, but overall 
could reduce energy consumption and carbon emissions.”

18



The other update in regard to regulation was the development of a regulatory framework 
for heat networks. Government has proposed to make heat networks a regulated market in 
the same way as gas and electricity markets. The proposed regulator would be Ofgem. 
Government aims to protect consumers, increase technical standards, increase investment 
and drive decarbonisation. The result of the Government’s response to the consultation 
could have significant impacts on the way the Council operates its heat networks.

Aylesbury Case Study

On 9th March 2020 a report was presented to Housing Scrutiny Commission giving an 
overview of district heating outages. Both residents and ward councillors representing the 
Aylesbury were present and contributed to the meeting. Councillor Jack Buck represents 
Faraday Ward where the Aylesbury Estate is situated and sits on the Housing Scrutiny 
Commission. The Housing Scrutiny Commission would like to thank them for providing 
evidence to us. 

The Aylesbury estate district heating system is the councils biggest, originally serving 2400 
dwellings when the estate was first built. The numbers served by the system are in gradual 
decline as the estate is undergoing phased decant and is being regenerated. The number of 
dwellings currently served is at circa 720.

As is well known, the regeneration programmes have not been delivered and the district 
heating system plant and above ground distribution pipework is still largely original, though 
most of the underground distribution pipework was replaced in 2014, and the boilers 
refurbished in 2019.

Despite this interim investment, the Commission heard evidence of a major outage that 
began on 16th January 2020 which caused serious discomfort and inconvenience to 
residents of the Aylesbury. Residents told us of their often harrowing experience of being 
left without heating and cold water for prolonged periods during cold weather. Members of 
the commission put on record their anger and, in the case of one member, his “shame” at 
what residents has been put through as a result of the council’s failure to put in place a 
reliable system for residents. The Cabinet member, who was also in attendance, repeated 
his apology to residents and gave a commitment to address these issues. 

The Commission heard that 3 of 4 boilers failed with bulges or splits in boilers – mostly 
caused by fresh water entering the system which damaged the boilers. Two of the three 
(no’s 3 and 4) had recently been shut down following statutory insurance inspections, who 
then insisted on inspection of boiler no. 1 on 18/1/20 when the bulges were found and 
boiler could not be reinstated.

The work to purchase, install, power and commission these temporary boilers and fuel 
storage was “largely completed” in 3 days from Friday 17th January to Sunday 19th January, 
but residents continued to experience significant periods without heating and hot water.  

The Commission spoke with Councillor Paul Fleming (Faraday Ward) who gave a wider 
overview of the situation on the estate and how residents viewed the council’s actions on 

19



district heating. Councillor Fleming said that heating and hot water outages had been one of 
the biggest problems for residents for over 10 years. He pointed out that the council has 
spent over £10 million in seeking to address these issues but has apparently still failed to 
put in place a reliable system. In his own words “We’ve thrown money at the problem.” 

He described how the council had installed the new boilers, then silt had come in from the 
old pipes and broken the new boilers. Both Councillor Fleming and several members of the 
Commission noted that such a use of resources without a positive outcome is incredible and 
should never be allowed to happen again. 

Councillor Fleming spoke about the possibility of the council installing and providing electric 
showers for residents as one way of resolving problem. The council first said this was too 
expensive, then said it was not possible because of water pressure issues and is now saying 
it can’t be done because of issues with the electric load problems. The moving of the 
goalposts has led to even more cynicism among residents about the council’s commitment 
to dealing with the issue. 

Councillor Fleming conceded that the wider issue is inherently linked to regeneration. He 
stated his view that decisions around rephrasing the regeneration are taking far too long.   

In response to these points, the Cabinet member for Housing spoke of his frustration that 
the large amount of investment had still not dealt with these problems. He stated that some 
of these blocks would still be homes to people for a number of years. He went on to say that 
this is why the Cabinet will come forward with reliable plan, based on a new independent 
assessment, for those blocks which are going to be around for a while. 

Councillor Lauder (Faraday Ward) also reflected the views of local residents and said that 
many felt let down.  Work needed to be urgently done to win back their trust. 

Officers did admit that despite temporary heating being put in place quickly, there has been 
some issues with the contractor, particularly in regard to engineers being taken off jobs too 
early.  The Cabinet member accepted that the stop-start communications on showers 
shouldn’t have happened. Upgrading of electrics in the blocks would be looked at. 

At the time of writing the outcome of an independent review of the outage is not yet 
known.  The independent review is being carried out by the City of London Corporation. 

Since March 2020 the council has conducted a concurrent review of the possible options to 
mitigate further outages and prepared a report with recommendations. Currently a number 
of temporary boilers are in operation across the estate to provide heating and hot water. 

Residents of the estate reported to the commission that accessing compensation payments 
for discomfort, inconvenience and the additional electrical costs from having to us electric 
heaters were difficult to access.  They told us the process was cumbersome and 
bureaucratic. Compensation payments are paid directly from the district heating budget. 
Officers reported that a revised compensation payment policy has been prepared and will 
shortly be presented to the strategic director of housing and modernisation.

Case study: Brandon Estate District Heating Outages

20



On 11th November 2019, residents from the Brandon Estate and their ward councillors 
attended the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting to discuss a variety of issues of 
concern on the estate including the delay in decision making around installing CCTV 
cameras, slowness of progress in establishing a young people’s hub at the Jack Hobbs Club, 
and, with relevance to this scrutiny process, the heating outages on the estate and the 
system of compensation for outages.

At the meeting the Chair of the Housing Scrutiny Commission agreed to look into the district 
heating related issues at future meetings. It was specifically noted that this should include 
the question of how compensation for heating outages is paid – specifically whether it can 
be credited to bank accounts instead of rent/service charge accounts. 
 
On 24th June, the Commission received a report from officers and held a discussion about 
issues experienced on the estate with ward councillors and the Cabinet Member for 
Housing. The commission heard that the Brandon district heating system serves 
approximately 580 properties and serves the Brandon 1 and 2 sections of the Brandon 
estate. Brandon 2 receives its heating and hot water via the Wyndham Boiler House.  4 
boilers provide the service, 3 were replaced in 2014 and the remaining boiler dates back to 
circa 1980. The underground heating mains were replaced in 2011.

An extensive major works project to refurbish the 9 plant rooms has now been completed 
and in a defect liability period ending in February 2021. This project incurred a cost of 
approx. £900,000. Planned maintenance works within the boiler house are continuing over 
the summer period

In their report, officers conceded that residents received interruptions to service during the 
changeover to the plant rooms during the recent refurbishment. They explained that this 
was due to the system dynamics being changed to allow a reduction in pressure to 
properties to extend life of the heating system and allow local isolation of blocks. They 
stated that these issues were now resolved after Engineering Services and our term 
contractors worked together with BSW Ltd (the major works contractor).
 

Councillor James Caldwell told the Commission that there was a “feeling of resignation and 
despair” about the constant outages.  He explained that the outages seemed to happen 
every winter and seemed to be getting worse.  He noted that the most serious outage in 
recent years was that which started in November 2018 and lasted the entirety of the winter.  
For that outage the council issued blanket compensation to all residents of Brandon 2 and 3 
(and Wyndham) of £253 each. Cllr Caldwell was asked about communications with residents 
during outages.  He replied by saying:

“Yes this is a problem.  In 2018, there was one meeting in particular where there was a lot of 
anger in the room and one of the things that residents noted was the lack of communication.  
It wasn’t that there was no communication from the council but it seemed that there was no 
consistency.  Some people were getting notices and others weren’t.  And for the most recent 
outage in May 2020, this was still a problem.” 

21



In response to this, the Cabinet Member for Housing apologised for the prolonged problems 
being experienced by residents on the estate. He pointed that major investment was now 
taking place in order to remedy these issues, but the age of the system and the historic lack 
of investment meant that it was very difficult to deal with.  He said he was confident that 
the right programme investment was now in place. He had asked officers to look at it again 
to make sure that everything which needed to be done was being done and nothing was 
being missed. The Cabinet Member also addressed the issue of communications during 
outages. He said that the call centre was more pro-active in calling other residents when 
there was a report of an outage and that residents who had registered their mobile number 
with the council should get a text message when an outage happens and updates on what is 
being done to fix the problem. 

Prior to the Commission’s meeting on 24th June, one resident of the Brandon Estate wrote 
to us and said the following on the issue of communication: 

“. . . for all residents, there is still often a lack of adequate warning of longer term outages, 
with many residents still receiving no prior notice. The level of compensation provided to all 
is woefully inadequate at times, like winter 2018, of long term outages of the heating 
system; or at all times when the hot water is off for days on end, given the high additional 
costs incurred especially by those with larger and / or young families.”

Co-Opted Commission Member Cris Claridge reported that a particular problem with noise 
from the heating system in Prescott House was causing significant problems for some 
residents, including one who was being forced to sleep in their car at night. Now that the 
heating system has been switched to summer mode the issue has been temporarily 
addressed, but this should be looked at again prior to winter mode being switched back on.  
Cris Claridge also reported the view of tenants that the levels of compensation issued were 
seen as “totally inadequate”. 

Notes from Tenant engagement meetings

As noted above, during the period of this scrutiny process the council has established a 
District Heating Resident Involvement Working Group.  The group includes a range of tenant 
representatives from across the borough and includes both tenant and leaseholders. Three 
meetings of the group have now taken place and the Housing Scrutiny Commission has 
reviewed the notes from these meetings.  The meetings took place on 10th October and 16th 
December 2019, and 24th Feb 2020. 

Members of the group have expressed a view that text messages and website should be 
used more often and more effectively in communicating with residents regarding district 
heating outages.  Council officers have informed the group that first communication with 
residents is via text messages and website updates, but that letters are sent as well when 
outages go over 24 hours. These are often delivered by housing officers and vulnerable 
residents are prioritised for delivery. 

22



The agenda for the group meetings has also included a discussion on the pros and cons of 
creating private sector heat partnerships (ESCO model).  It was explained that it has been 
estimated the council would need to invest at least £350m to bring the condition of its heat 
networks up to a modern standard in the long term, and so the council is considering such 
partnerships in order.

Quotes from residents in response to this include the following:

“This sounds a bit like a PFI deal – there can be eye-watering legal and financial set-up costs 
to these deals.”

“Myatts Fields North in Lambeth is an ESCO and that has been disastrous”

“I’m open to this kind of arrangement as long as there is a good service. It might be 
necessary to make the level of investment that is required. What’s the alternative? One con 
though is that the service provider is an extra level removed from the residents.” 

The 24th February meeting was largely taken up with discussions about the council’s 
response to government policy on individual metering.  It was explained that new-build 
homes are already required to have heat meters by law and Southwark could be forced to 
retrofit heat meters into existing council properties.  

This is subject to how the current Heat Metering and Billing Regulations are amended 
(currently being updated by central government). If heat meters were rolled out across all 
existing properties, it would need a massive programme of education to help people 
understand how they work and how any associated charging system would affect them. The 
group was asked about the possibility of YouTube videos being used and/or a standard 
handbook. 

Regarding the type of tariff the council should apply if metering is introduced across the 
board, the table below was used to explain the various options which would be available.

Heating tariffs, like gas or electricity tariffs, normally comprise of two elements:
1. A standing charge, normally accounted for daily, just for being connected to the heating 

system. The price of the standing charge is normally calculated so that the network 
operator can recover their fixed costs. 

2. A variable charge, normally accounted for per unit of heat consumed. The price of the 
variable charge is normally calculated so that the network operator can recover their 
variable costs. 

There are certain advantages and disadvantages to constructing a heat tariff in this way. 

Fixed rate for 
heating

“Mobile phone 
contract” equivalent 

Industry standard 
heat metering 
approach

No standing charge 
approach

Explanation The current pool 
charge is like this

Paying a fixed 
monthly charge gives 

Paying a daily 
standing charge 

All payments are 
on an elevated 

23



you a certain 
amount of heat to 
use. If you go above 
this level,  you pay 
extra on a variable 
basis

plus p/kWh for 
any heat 
consumed

p/kWh basis

Standing 
charge 
covers

100% fixed cost
100% variable

100% fixed
50% variable?

100% fixed cost
0% variable

0% fixed
0% variable

Variable 
charge 
covers

0% fixed
0% variable

0% fixed
50% variable?

0% fixed costs
100% variable

100% fixed cost
100% variable

Pros Really simply
People don’t 
worry about heat 
consumption

Encourages people 
not to use too much 
heat. 
Encourages people 
to use at least some 
heat.

Encourages 
people not to use 
too much heat.
Simple

Encourages people 
not to use too 
much heat.
Benefits very low 
users / people who 
are sometimes 
away.

Cons Does not 
encourage 
efficiency 
behaviour.

Might tempt people 
to turn off when 
they reach limit even 
if it’s cold.
Requires instant and 
reliable access to 
meter data. 
Market doesn’t 
currently offer.

Can discourage 
heat use 
altogether in 
some cases to 
save money.

Could discourage 
heat use altogether 
in some cases.
Some residents 
could end up 
subsidising the 
standing charge for 
others.
Market doesn’t 
currently offer.

It was explained to the group that pre-payment arrangements for heat meters with auto 
cut-off are not uncommon in the housing association sector (probably the standard 
approach).  Some members of the group thought an auto cut-off approach would be very 
negative for some residents.

Southwark does not have discretionary aid programme for people who have medical 
conditions that require high level of washing and bathing. It is difficult to do this with 
communal heating systems.

Members of the group expressed that freedom of choice ought to be a clear principle in 
deciding on heating systems.

The group commented that the current compensation approach is too ad hoc. A case by 
case process of needing to “prove your extra electricity cost” doesn’t protect the most 
vulnerable residents.  However, the group also wanted to avoid a “compensation culture” 
because it costs the Council money which could be better used improving problematic 
heating systems. 

24



Formal evidence submitted by Southwark Group of Tenants Organisations

Southwark Group of Tenants organisations have been engaged in this Scrutiny process from 
the outset. Chair of the SGTO (Cris Claridge) sits on the Housing Scrutiny Commission as a 
co-opted member, and the Commission has also taken two sets of written evidence from 
SGTO in October 2019 and again in July 2020.  The second submission included feedback 
arising from the experience of residents following the Covid-19 lock-down. Rhiannon 
Hughes, Campaigns and Research Officer for the SGTO, has been very helpful in providing 
evidence and the Commission would like to thank her for her engagement in the process. 

SGTO provided evidence of the extent of disturbance and discomfort that outages inflicted 
on tenants.  They noted that, during March 2018, the period when the so called ‘Beast from 
the East’ hit the UK, 16,104 council homes were affected by heating and hot water outages. 

The October 2019 report from SGTO also highlights the huge impact that district heating 
outages can have on people’s lives, including increased debt because residents have to take 
alternative actions to heat their homes and water. The SGTO raised particular concerns 
about the position of elderly and vulnerable residents when there is an outage.  They 
pointed out that this group is particularly vulnerable because their physical health if often 
not good and because they are on fixed incomes and can struggle when bills come in.  One 
quote from a tenant included in the report is:

“You have pensioners who are sitting there in the cold, pensioners feel it more than others. 
Why should they have to pay more to have an electric heater on?”

SGTO highlighted the experience of some tenants when they are trying to access 
compensation which they say is a bureaucratic and cumbersome process. 

SGTO recommended that the council do more work to make sure people know how to 
report outages.  They also wanted reassurance that multiple job numbers were not being 
allocated for the same district heating repairs leading to a lack of accountability for when 
the job is really complete. 

SGTO asked that vulnerable tenants/leaseholders receive more support from Southwark 
Council when there is outage in their property. 

SGTO also said that there are discrepancies in who is offered gym/leisure Centre access for 
washing during period of outages on estates. If people are offered this, gym staff should be 
made aware this is happening. There should be a blanket approach when offering this. 

They also said that any new compensation Policy “needs to be made much clearer, where to 
find it, how to claim it and what is needed to claim it.” And that “a blanket, measurable 
approach needs to be given with compensation and support during outages.” 

The July 2020 report from SGTO also highlighted the issues mentioned earlier in this report 
in relation to noise created by district heating systems for people living in certain properties. 

25



This report also gave more detail on what SGTO wanted to see from a revised compensation 
policy.  

The report also states that “Payment should be in cash or to bank accounts, not via rent 
accounts. Many people are in arrears with rent (not least due to the fact that this is how 
Universal Credit pays it) so the money is swallowed up and does not help them heat their 
homes.”
 
And “Payment should be in advance (at least for planned outages) or immediate and 
guaranteed, to ensure no one goes cold.” 

Recommendations

Strategic expansion of and investment in the heat network

1. Encouraging use of SELCHP (A low carbon option) through the planning process: 
HSC notes that there are both GLA level (London Plan) and Southwark level (New 
Southwark Plan) policies in support of new developments (both private and public) 
connecting to existing district heating systems. Clearly, encouraging more 
developments to join with what are low carbon heat networks is something the 
council should be encouraging. To strengthen this, HSC recommends that the 
Cabinet investigates possibility of creating a “Local Development Order” which 
would mean the default energy solution to be a SELCHP connection unless it is 
practically unfeasible. 

2. District Heating and investment partners: HSC notes that the council’s current 
policy is to “. . . investigate ways in which the private sector could potentially play a 
role in investing into the Council’s networks and providing operational and 
maintenance services over a long-term contract. This work is still in progress.” In 
regard to this policy position, HSC makes the following recommendations:

a) Southwark has recently taken a much firmer hold of the housing repairs service 
(a service which does not generally cover district heating repairs), ending the 
client model arrangements with SBS and making it a genuinely in-house service.  
This direct management control of the repairs service opens up significant 
opportunities for cost-saving, and efficiency.  The Cabinet should investigate if 
this expanded in-house capacity might replace some of the contractual 
arrangements with the private sector for repairs to district heating.  

b) Southwark council has a long history of failed or inadequate strategic 
partnerships with the private sector.  Housing repairs, the call-centre and IT are 
just a few examples, and there are many more. On each occasion, when the 
service is eventually brought back in-house, we have seen improvements in 

26



service quality and significant cost savings. HSC is concerned that the council 
does not repeat the mistakes of the past. The Cabinet member should ensure all 
other avenues for securing service delivery and investment are exhausted before 
proceeding with strategic partnerships with the private sector. 

3. Investigate a ‘sinking fund’: Multiple contributions made in evidence for this 
scrutiny have raised the issue of large charges being made to leaseholders as a result 
of large scale investment into estate heating systems. HSC recognises that 
leaseholders must make a contribution to these costs as a matter of law. However, 
HSC notes that in other boroughs (such as Brent) a ‘sinking fund’ has been developed 
which involves the council collecting additional funds (as part of their heat meter 
tariff). Such a system may not be right for Southwark, but this model is worth looking 
at more closely because it is a way of smoothing contributions over time so that 
leaseholders don’t receive very large one-off capital works bills. One potential pitfall 
of sinking funds which should be kept in mind is that there is a danger of the council 
receiving demands for interest or reimbursement from contributors. HSC would wish 
to see this risk mitigated. HSC recommends the Cabinet investigate the feasibility of 
developing a ‘sinking fund’ from tenants and leaseholders for maintenance and 
repair and replacement of heating systems.

4. Spread best practice from DBEIS funded investigation: HSC notes that Southwark 
was successful in having five sites join a consultancy investigation led and funded by 
Department of Business Energy and Industrial Strategy to identify how different heat 
networks could improve performance and efficiency. Southwark’s consultancy 
partner is investigating the costs and benefits of various improvement measures that 
could be carried out at Brandon, Brimmington, Newington, North Peckham and 
Sylvan Grove estates.  HSC recommends that, should wider lessons from this, this 
best practice should be applied more widely in other areas of Southwark. 

Repairs and response to outages

5. Improving communications during outages: It is clear that mobile text message 
updates for residents are by far the quickest and most effective means of 
communication when an outage occurs. However, many residents have not 
registered their mobile number with the council or their details are not up to date. 
Consequently, some residents do not receive these updates and are unaware of 
what actions are being taken. HSC recommends the following related actions to 
cabinet:

a) A concerted campaign on estates most affected by district heating outages to get 
residents to register/update their mobile phone numbers with the council. This could 
include a prize competition for those registering their details.

27



b) Include in the script for call centre operatives taking repair and other calls a request 
for a mobile number to be registered.

c) Information about residents to registering their mobile numbers should be shared 
with mutual-aid groups that have developed during the Covid-19 pandemic.

d) The council should investigate how social media tools might be put to good use 
during outages.  Some platforms, such as Facebook, can facilitate messages being 
shown to people in specific locations and this might be put to good use during 
outages. Clearly the cost of this would also need to be looked at closely. 

e) The Covid-19 pandemic means that the council now has much better information on 
which residents are vulnerable or sometimes need additional support.  This 
information should be used in cases of significant district heating outages.  The 
council should pro-actively contact vulnerable residents at the start of and during 
outages and offer support where appropriate.  

f) Risks to vulnerable residents from boiling and moving water: The council should 
also consider the wider risks to vulnerable residents who, because of hot water 
outages, are being forced to boil water and then move this around their homes, and 
investigate what further support can be provided to ensure risks of accidents 
associated with this are minimised. 

6. Simplify compensation process: HSC is aware that officers are already in the process 
of reviewing and changing the council’s policy on compensation for residents as a 
result of additional costs arising from heating outages. We recommend that any new 
policy should simplify the compensation payment process, and remove the need to 
detailed and onerous record keeping by residents. The review should also consider if 
it may sometimes be appropriate to supply pre-paid electric meter cards to those 
residents who may struggle to pay additional electricity costs up front. Finally, the 
review should also consider the compensation taking into account the accumulated 
impact of repeated outages on the quality of life of residents.

7. Prompt completion of compensation review: HSC recommends that the review of 
the compensation process and associated changes are delivered promptly and 
without further delay. 

8. Ensure residents can use other local facilities during outages: During outages 
leisure centre washing facilities are already made available to all residents.  
However, HSC has received evidence that some residents are being turned away 
because leisure centre staff are not aware of the policy.  Procedures should be put in 
place to ensure that all customer facing leisure centre staff are made aware of this 
offer to residents so that they can use these facilities.

28



9. Noise pollution from district heating systems: HSC has heard evidence that some 
residents (notably on the Aylesbury and Brandon Estates) are suffering from sleep 
deprivation as a result of the loud noise coming from the district heating systems.  
These are serious issues which can have a detrimental impact of people’s mental 
health.  HSC asks that an investigation of noise levels on the Brandon estate is 
carried out, followed by appropriate action to resolve any issues with noise 
pollution. 

Metering and heat market regulation

10. Tariff for individual metering: If individual metering is introduced across the board, 
the decision on the type of tariff system used in Southwark will have far reaching 
consequences. Cabinet should seek to strike a balance between simplicity, 
protecting the vulnerable and encouraging heat use efficiency. Consequently, HSC 
recommends that Cabinet favours a blended “Mobile phone contract” style tariff, 
mixing a fixed monthly charge for a standardised amount of heat use, and then 
further payment when additional heat is required. This also seems to be the 
favoured choice of residents attending feedback sessions.   

11. Discretionary scheme: Any new tariff system should be introduced alongside a 
discretionary aid scheme (including bill reductions) for those with special 
requirements (such as those people who require additional washing and bathing.

12. Heat metre education: If heat meters are required to be rolled out across existing 
properties, HSC recommends an accompanying programme of education to help 
people understand how they work and how any associated charging system would 
affect them. This should include online resources and video tutorials to maximise 
accessibility. 

13. Returning these issues to Housing Scrutiny Commission:  HSC recommends that the 
cabinet member and officers brings back further proposals on metering and other 
changes relating to heat market regulation to HSC in the future. 

29



This page is intentionally blank.



Housing and Community Engagement Scrutiny Commission 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2020-21

AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN)

NOTE: Original held by Scrutiny Team; all amendments/queries to Fitzroy Williams Tel: 020 7525 7102

Name No of 
copies

Name No of 
copies

Electronic Copy

Members

Councillor Gavin Edwards
Councillor Hamish McCallum
Councillor Radha Burgess
Councillor Paul Fleming
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle MBE
Councillor Jon Hartley 
Councillor Nick Johnson 

Reserves Members

Councillor Anood Al-Samerai
Councillor Sunny Lambe
Councillor Sarah King
Councillor Victoria Olisa
Councillor Andy Simmons
Councillor Bill Williams

Co-Opted Members

To be confirmed

Aine Gallagher - Head of Cabinet Office 
and Public Affairs

External

Caroline Vicent

Total: 14

Dated: October 2020


	Agenda
	6 WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21
	Housing and Community Engagement Scrutiny Commission work programme - Appendix 1

	7 DISTRICT HEATING AND HEAT NETWORKS FINAL REPORT
	 
	DistributionListHousing&CommEn_2020-21


